
For requests for further information
Contact  Helen Davies
Tel:       01270 685705
E-Mail:    helen.davies@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies

Children and Families Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Agenda
Date: Monday, 22nd June, 2020
Time: 1.30 pm
Venue: Virtual

How to Watch the Meeting

For anybody wishing to view the meeting live please click in the link below:

Join live event 

or dial in via telephone on 141 +44 20 3321 5200 and enter Conference ID 663 664 74#
when prompted.
Please turn off your camera and microphone when entering the meeting and ensure they
remain turned off throughout.

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press. 
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons 
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making and 
Overview and Scrutiny meetings are audio recorded and the recordings will be uploaded to 
the Council’s website

PART 1 – MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT

1. Apologies for Absence  

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. Minutes of Previous meeting  (Pages 3 - 4)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 24th February 2020.

Public Document Pack

mailto:mark.nedderman@cheshireeast.gov.uk
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZDVlNTNmZGYtNGJlMi00NzdkLWJmOTUtMGY4MGI0MjY4M2Rl%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cdb92d10-23cb-4ac1-a9b3-34f4faaa2851%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%229af98521-d41b-4fd5-b953-b2ea78830dc0%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d


3. Declarations of Interest  

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

4. Whipping Declarations  

To provide an opportunity for Members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to 
any item on the agenda

5. Public Speaking/Open Session  

A total period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to make a statement(s) on 
any matter that falls within the remit of the Committee. Individual members of the public may 
speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will decide how the period of time allocated for 
public speaking will be apportioned, where there are a number of speakers.

Members of the public wishing to make a statement should provide notice in writing at least 
three clear working days before the meeting takes place.

6. Responding to Covid-19  

To receive an update to cover the response by Cheshire East to the global pandemic 
including: education, child protection, children missing from home and children not accessing 
full time education plus as update on young people’s mental health needs and the current 
offer.

7. Covid Update - Children's Services  (Pages 5 - 24)

8. Forward Plan  (Pages 25 - 32)

To give consideration to the areas of the forward plan which fall within the remit of the 
Committee.

9. Work Programme  (Pages 33 - 42)

To give consideration to the work programme

Membership:  Councillors M Addison, J Barber, M Beanland, D Brown, J Buckley, 
C Bulman (Vice-Chairman), P Butterill, S Handley, A Moran, J Saunders (Chairman), 
Smith and N Wylie



CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

held on Monday, 24th February, 2020 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, 
Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor J Saunders (Chairman)
Councillor P Butterill (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors J Barber, M Beanland, J Buckley, C Bulman, S Edgar, S Handley, 
M Houston, A Moran, L Wardlaw and N Wylie

PORTFOLIO HOLDERS IN ATTENDANCE

Councillor K Flavell, Portfolio Holder for Children and Families

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

Kerry Birtles, Head of Service Cared for Children & Care Leavers
Dr Kate Bonser, Consultant Clinical Psychologist (Manchester NHS 
Foundation Trust)
Annie Britton, Participation Lead Worker
Anne Casey, Head of Clinical Services (CAMHS)
Fiona Ellis, SEND Participation Worker / Senior Youth Support Worker
Jacky Forster, Director of Education and 14-19 Skills
Dr Matthew Howard, Clinical Director (CAMHS)
Mike Hall, Project Manager (Adoption Counts)
Louise Hurst, Head of Service Children in Need and Child Protection
Dave Leadbetter, Head of Service Children’s Commissioning
Amanda McCaig, Home and Family Support Team Manager
Kay McIntyre, Youth Support Area Delivery Manager (North)
Mark Palethorpe, Executive Director People
Sarah Ramsey, Youth Support Area Delivery Manager (South)
Alison Stathers-Tracey, Director of Prevention and Early Help
Jamaila Tausif, Director of Strategy and Partnerships (NHS Cheshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group)
Joanne Watts, (Head of Operations, Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS 
Foundation Trust)
Sue Westwood, Regional Adoption Manager (Adoption Counts)
Claire Williamson, Head of Service Education Participation and Pupil Support

49 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M Addison 
(substituted for by Councillor S Edgar) and D Brown (substituted for by 
Councillor L Wardlaw).

Page 3 Agenda Item 2



50 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED – 

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 January 2020 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

51 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

52 WHIPPING DECLARATIONS 

There were no declarations of a party whip.

53 PUBLIC SPEAKING/OPEN SESSION 

There were no members of the public present who wished to speak.

54 SPOTLIGHT REVIEW OF CHILDREN'S MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 
IN CHESHIRE EAST 

The committee considered a range of reports and presentations from a 
variety of council services, NHS providers and commissioners and other 
external partners on the provision and effectiveness of children’s mental 
health services in Cheshire East. 

During the meeting, the committee noted a number of key, salient issues 
raised by the witnesses, and discussed a number of recommendations 
that it wished to submit to the council and partners as part of its final 
report.

RESOLVED – 

1 That the presentations and reports be noted, and witnesses be 
thanked for taking the time to attend the meeting and contribute to 
the review.

2 That the committee meet in private session on 23 March 2020 to 
discuss and finalise the recommendations to be included in the final 
report. 

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 4.50 pm

Councillor J Saunders (Chairman)

Page 4



  

OFFICIAL 

1 

 

 
 
DECISION REPORT 

Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
 

Date of Meeting:  22 June 2020 

Report Title:   Children’s Services’ Response to COVID-19 

Portfolio Holder:  Cllr Kathryn Flavell, Portfolio Holder for Children and Families 

Senior Officer:   Mark Palethorpe, Executive Director of People 

 

1. Report summary 

 

1.1. This report provides a summary of the work of Children’s Services in 

response to the current national and international public health 

emergency on COVID-19. 

 

1.2. These are unprecedented times for the Council, and for our children, 

young people and families.  

 

1.3. We have many challenges ahead. COVID-19 is and will continue to 

have a significant impact on our children, young people and families. 

The strain of COVID-19 and lockdown has increased pressures for 

families, with some facing redundancy. The mental health and 

wellbeing of children, young people and families has been affected. 

Children and young people have missed out on education. Lockdown 

has reduced the visibility of children, allowing harm to remain hidden. 

The likely economic recession that will follow as a result of COVID-19 

will increase the number of children living in poverty and will 

exacerbate the current inequalities. The legacy of this will be an 

increased demand for services over the next year but also in the 

longer term, with an increased cost to the Council and the partnership.  

 

   

Key Decision N 
 

Date First 
Published: N/A 

Page 5 Agenda Item 7



 

OFFICIAL 

  

2. Recommendation/s 

 

2.1 Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to 

note: 

• The progress to date, 

• The issues outlined in this report, and 

• The financial implications of COVID-19 to date and to continue to 

lobby Government to fund the total financial impact of the 

pandemic.  

 

3. Reasons for Recommendation/s 

 

3.1. To enable members to scrutinise arrangements for children to ensure 

we have the right support in place to help children achieve the best 

outcomes. To put on public record a summary of our response to date. 

To explain the financial implications and the ongoing pressures due to 

COVID-19. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 

 

4.1. Not applicable. 

 

5. Background  

 

5.1 Coronaviruses (CoV) are a large family of viruses that cause 

respiratory illness. On 31 December 2019, a cluster of pneumonia 

cases of unknown cause was reported in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, 

China. The novel coronavirus has been named by the World Health 

Organisation (WHO) as ‘severe acute respiratory syndrome 

coronavirus 2’ (SARS-CoV-2), while the coronavirus disease 

associated with it is referred to as COVID-191. 

 

5.2 As with other respiratory illnesses, symptoms of COVID-19 can 

include a runny nose, loss of smell, sore throat, cough, and fever. It 

can be more severe for some people and can lead to pneumonia or 

breathing difficulties. More rarely, the disease can be fatal. Older 

people, and people with pre-existing medical conditions (such as 

diabetes and heart disease) appear to be more vulnerable to 

becoming severely ill with the virus2.  

                                                           
1 https://www.who.int/emergencies/diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019/technical-guidance/naming-
the-coronavirus-disease-(covid-2019)-and-the-virus-that-causes-it 
2 https://www.who.int/news-room/q-a-detail/q-a-coronaviruses 

Page 6



  

OFFICIAL 

3 

 

5.3 On 3 March 2020, the government published its coronavirus action 

plan which was based on four strategic phases – contain; delay, 

research; and mitigate.  

 

5.4 On 12 March 2020, the government published its ‘Stay at home’ 

guidance which set out what individuals should do if they experienced 

coronavirus symptoms, however mild. At this point the government 

recognised that the virus was spreading generally throughout the 

country and could no longer be contained through international travel 

restrictions and by contact tracing around suspected or confirmed 

cases. In terms of its action plan, this signified the shift from ‘contain’ 

to ‘delay’. 

 

5.5 Following announcements in relation to the closure of schools, pubs 

and restaurants, a UK-wide lockdown was announced on 23 March 

2020, backed by police powers to enforce social distancing and 

closure regulations. 

 

5.6 Emergency legislation was introduced and passed in just four days, 

with the Coronavirus Act 2020 receiving Royal Assent on 25 March 

2020.  The legislation gives further powers to government to slow the 

spread of the virus; reduce the resourcing and administrative burden 

on public bodies; and limit the impact of potential staffing shortages on 

the delivery of public services. 

 

5.7 The government has made a number of announcements in relation to 

supporting local government financially, either by making available 

additional funding or by bringing forwarded previously announced 

funding programmes3. In terms of additional funding, the government 

has made available two amounts of £1.6 billion COVID-19 grant, 

announced on 19 March and 18 April 2020.  Hardship funding to 

support local council tax support schemes was announced on 11 

March 2020 totalling £500 million. 

 

5.8 On 11 May 2020, the government published ‘Our plan to rebuild: the 

UK Government’s COVID-19 recovery strategy’.  This set out a five-

point scale to indicate the level of threat posed by COVID-19 to 

society and a phased approach to recovery, with incremental steps to 

relax control and public protection measures. 

 

                                                           
3 https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/insights/coronavirus-support-for-local-government/ 

Page 7



 

OFFICIAL 

6. Children’s Services’ Response to COVID-19 

6.1 Children’s services have continued to operate to ensure our children 

and families are supported during this time. Services have been 

creative and have adapted to be able to offer support remotely, for 

example our parenting journey is being offered through our 

Facebook page, with online tips, videos, advice and activities, 

receiving very positive feedback from parents. We have established 

new procedures across Children’s Services to ensure that children 

are effectively safeguarded and supported which are available on our 

COVID-19 page on Centranet for all Children and Families staff. 

Some services have continued offering face to face support to 

ensure our most vulnerable children are safe.  

 

6.2 Almost all our schools and some early years settings have remained 

open for the children of key workers and those defined as vulnerable. 

We have had positive feedback and thanks from the NHS for 

providing places for all their key workers. 

 

6.3 Government Guidance has been changing rapidly, and services 

have needed to be responsive and flexible, working closely and 

supportively with our partners to implement changes. 

 

6.4 We have been able to support our NHS colleagues during this time 

by enabling Midwifery services to be run through our Children’s 

Centres. This has meant these services have been able to be 

provided in safe places in local communities, rather than in busy 

local hospitals.   

 

Children’s Social Care 

 

6.5 At the outbreak of COVID-19, we assessed all cases open to 

Prevention and Children’s Social Care, RAG rated the risk to 

children, and reviewed plans in light of the new situation. All children 

who were assessed as high risk have had face to face visits to 

ensure they are effectively safeguarded. Weekly operational 

meetings were established to discuss high risk children to ensure the 

right support is place for these children and there is senior manager 

oversight of those most at risk. Support is being provided in line with 

the DfE guidance for Children’s Social Care which acknowledges 

that meetings and contact with families may need to take place in 

alternative ways. 

 

Page 8



  

OFFICIAL 

5 

6.6 All partners in the Safeguarding Children Partnership have affirmed 

that safeguarding children remains a key priority and weekly 

meetings were established to ensure the partnership offer is strong 

and we can respond flexibly to emerging needs or building pressures 

for individual agencies. This includes support and challenge between 

agencies as required.  

 

6.7 Maintaining contact with children continues to be a multi-agency 

priority, with other key professionals involved with the family 

remaining in contact with children as well as social workers. School 

and early years settings have been crucial in this and we have a 

rolling process of contacting all schools and settings on a weekly 

basis to discuss any concerns. This has supported strong 

relationships between services.  

 

6.8 Education, Prevention and Children’s Social Care have been working 

in partnership to support vulnerable children to attend schools and 

settings. We are working together with families and encouraging 

attendance, and as a result, the number of vulnerable children 

attending schools and settings continues to increase. Helplines have 

been established for practitioners and families to contact and report 

any issues in returning vulnerable children to school which are 

enabling quick resolutions.   

 

6.9  Cared for children and care leavers have been impacted by COVID-

19. Some children who are currently in the Public Law Outline (PLO) 

process will experience significant delays of between 3-6 months in 

agreeing their permanency plan as a result of COVID-19. This is due 

to challenges for the Court in delivering fair justice for complex cases 

 where there is a finding of fact or final hearing. Children who are at 

most acute risk due to the delay in achieving permanence are 

children with a plan of adoption, and children who are not currently 

living in their long-term placement. 

 

6.10 The number of cared for childen is likely to increase due to 

Coronavirus and the resulting challenges in progressing children's 

care plans. We have been working to ensure placement stability for 

children and young people is maintained throughout this time. In line 

with DfE guidance, where it is in their best interests to do so some 

cared for young people who have turned 18, and some care leavers, 

have remained in their placement to ensure they are safe. We have 

contingency plans in place to ensure we will have sufficient places 

for cared for children and care leavers.   

 

Page 9



 

OFFICIAL 

6.11 As some children and young people will be staying in placements 

longer than they would otherwise, this will be a continued upward 

pressure on cared for children expenditure. We have seen an 

increase in the use of external foster care placements. It is likely that 

there will be increased demand for placements, and there is a risk 

that providers will uplift placement costs in response. Foster carer 

allowances have been temporarily increased to support the 

additional costs of having children at home as a result of 

coronavirus, and we have increased the support available to foster 

carers through regular phone contact, which carers have 

appreciated. As time progresses, it is likely that the increase in costs 

as a result of COVID-19 will rise further. 

 

6.12 We are continuing to support children who are on the edge of care to 

prevent children coming into care where possible. We are continuing 

our work on Bespoke, and three of our four children’s homes are 

now registered with Ofsted and are caring for Cheshire East children 

and young people who have previously been living out of borough or 

in independent residential settings. We plan to have the fourth home 

fully mobilised by July, and collectively this will provide 12 homes for 

children in Cheshire East with a greater potential to achieve much 

better outcomes as a result of being back in their communities. Staff 

from our children’s homes are providing intensive support to some 

children and young people who are currently in residential care, in 

order to support them to return home long term.   

  

6.13 Following the outbreak of COVID-19, the Children with Disabilities, 

Fostering Services, and parents of disabled children, risk assessed 

the Short Break Carers overnight support service. The risk of 

infection to the group of our most vulnerable children was seen as 

significant and a decision was made to suspend this service. In 

addition to this, all of our commissioned short break providers also 

decided to suspend their services, this included both overnight and 

day-time based support, as well as support that is part of our 

statutory ‘short break local offer’. 

 

6.14 This has had a significant impact on our disabled children, both 

those that are cared for and children in need, and has resulted in 

very little support being provided either inside or outside of family 

homes. Some of these children and young people have continued to 

access education via their special school but the wider package of 

support usually available to these families has not been 

available. The vast majority of our commissioned providers have 

Page 10



  

OFFICIAL 

7 

offered virtual support and some practical support through social 

media, food parcels, games and activities. 

 

6.15 The Children with Disabilities Social Work Team and Short Breaks 

Team have been working with children, young people, parents and 

carers to identify creative ways that current packages of support 

could be altered to ensure that families have continued to receive 

some level of support, for example allowing parents and carers to 

use their direct payment or early help individual payment to purchase 

sensory equipment, accessing online dancing and music 

lessons. Many personal assistants who are paid via direct payments 

have continued to have contact with children and families through 

social media platforms, for example Zoom and Facetime. 

 

6.16 Ordinarily, the packages of support that we deliver are calculated on 

an annual basis, for example 3 hours per week direct payment 

during term time (38 weeks) and 6 hours per week during the school 

holidays (14 weeks). This better reflects the additional stress placed 

on many families of disabled children outside of the school term  and 

provides some autonomy to families in purchasing more support at 

the right time. We have found with many families that despite the 

amazing resilience that they have shown we have had to increase 

the school holiday elements of some care packages to manage the 

increasing stress within the families home. This will result in an 

overspend within the direct payments budget over this financial year. 

 

6.17 We are currently working with the wider council, our short break 

commissioned providers, the Parent Carer Forum, and other local 

organisations to reintroduce an increased short breaks offer over the 

summer period.  

 

6.18 Care leavers potentially present as the most vulnerable cohort during 

this period due to the risk of social isolation, lack of employment, 

financial hardship and deterioration in mental health. The service is 

working hard to stay in touch and offer support as a priority for these 

young people. We have adapted our local offer in light of COVID-19 

to ensure care leavers have the support they need.  

 

6.19 To ensure Members are informed and can effectively exercise their 

corporate parenting responsibilities, a regular briefing has been 

established for the members of the Corporate Parenting Committee.  

 

6.20 It was anticipated that the national restrictions would initially reduce 

the numbers of children and young people reported as missing. This 

Page 11



 

OFFICIAL 

has been the case with a significant reduction in incidents since 

March. More recently, the numbers have gradually started to 

increase (May) and we might expect this to return to more usual 

levels as the restrictions continue to ease. Our offer to children 

continues through the commmisisoned service, providing 

independent support virtually, including return home interviews, 

some one to one case work and resources for professionals, children 

or parents and carers. Multi-agency trigger meetings have continued 

to take place for the most vulnerable children to ensure that there is 

a coordinated safety plan that enables risk reduction despite the 

current changes to working. There are clear pathways to considering 

potential risks for these children of child exploitation and the 

Operational Groups have continued to meet monthly. 

 

6.21 There has been a national focus on the increased risks that the 

restrictive measures will have presented for victims of Domestic 

Abuse and their children. The media have suggested a significant 

increase in reporting and week commencing 8 June the NSPCC 

provided their evidence that children had also suffered as a result of 

having reduced access to safe adults and networks outside the 

home. In Cheshire East we have seen requests for support returning 

to normal expected levels after an initial reduction. The most recent 

pattern which is emerging is an increase in the seriousness of the 

harm being caused within families already known to services, with a 

greater number of referrals to the high risk provision of IDVAs and 

MARAC.  

 

6.22 Throughout this period, Domestic Abuse Services have continued to 

work together across the partnership to provide safety, reduce risk 

and prevent further harm for the whole family. We have increased 

our response at the point of the first call to strengthen the 

intervention. Some face to face work is taking place, but for the 

majority, individual and joint family work is being delivered by video 

link, as is the group work. We have had positive feedback about this, 

including group work carried out with those who harm.  

 

6.23 Alongside this we have been part of campaigning and raising 

awareness of the support available across the PAN Cheshire 

footprint and provided resources for parents and professionals which 

have been well received. This intensive community support work has 

prevented an escalation in the victims requiring emergency 

accommodation and we have been able to support all those requiring 

this form of help. In preparation for the experiences we know will only 

be heard once restrictions are fully lifted, we have been successful in 

Page 12



  

OFFICIAL 

9 

a number of applications for additional temporary funding from 

central government, supported by the PAN Cheshire Transformation 

Board. We will also use the experiences we have had during this 

period to introduce greater choice for how we respond to meet need 

in the future. 

 

6.24 Now we are moving into recovery, all children open to Children’s 

Social Care will receive a face to face visit in the next few weeks if 

they have not already received one during lockdown.  

 

6.25 Some families have coped exceptionally well during this time. 

However, we know that lockdown has been a challenging time for 

some, and will have allowed issues to remain hidden, preventing 

early identification and prevention.  

 

6.26 We expect to see a rise in referrals to Prevention and Children’s 

Social Care once more children return to schools and settings. This 

could result in a significant increase in demand to services over the 

coming year.   

 

Early Help and Prevention 

 

6.27 A significant number of childcare settings in Cheshire East decided 

to close as a result of Coronavirus and the ability to furlough staff. 

We wrote to every setting advising them that we have interim legal 

authority to request them to re-open if needed. As a result, the 

number of settings open doubled. We have offered a brokerage 

service for any child that required a place in a setting so all children 

have been appropriately supported and can access provision. 

Regular calls are in place with early years settings to check their 

status and the vacancies that they offer sufficient places are 

available for keyworkers and vulnerable children. Concerted effort 

continues to be made to support vulnerable under 5’s who are open 

to Children’s Social Care back into settings in order to support 

families and reduce family pressures.  

 

6.28 All early years settings were encouraged to be in regular contact with 

families whether they were open or closed, to ensure that families 

were aware support was available if they wanted advice, or if they 

wanted to access childcare in the future.  

 

6.29 The DfE guidance for settings has been complex and we have 

established a helpline to support settings and childminders with their 

queries, which has been well received. We are working closely with 

Page 13



 

OFFICIAL 

settings and childminders to plan for reopening and have established 

focus groups to drive this work forward. 

 

6.30 We continue to support families open to our services and we are now 

the top performing local authority in the North West for Family Focus 

(Troubled Families Programme), achieving successful outcomes for 

1,900 families. 

 

6.31 Cases open to the Cheshire East Family Service are increasingly 

becoming more complex. Lockdown has had an impact on the 

mental health of our children, young people and parents/ carers so 

our intervention and existing plans and priorities within them are 

changing as a result.   

 

6.32  The Youth Support Service is carrying out joint work with PCSOs in 

local communities targetting hot spots where young people are 

gathering. This has been positively received by young people and 

parents.  

 

Education and Skills 

 

6.33 We have worked closely with schools throughout this period, and 

have supported schools through school closure. Overall, Cheshire 

East schools have been very responsive and flexible to changing the 

way they work to accommodate vulnerable children and children of 

keyworkers. All but six of our schools were open over Easter 

compared to just 60% nationally.  

 

6.34 We have established a range of support for schools, intially providing 

daily calls to offer support and check on their wellbeing, which has 

now reduced to twice a week. This has ensured we have strong 

communication and concerns are shared and resolved together, and 

schools have reported that they feel supported and listened to. We 

have developed specific guidance for schools on safeguarding, 

testing and HR matters, and send out daily bulletins to schools 

sharing the latest advice and guidance. We have provided PPE to 

schools where needed. We are continuing to provide intensive 

support to schools to those that need it. We have established 

attendance monitoring arrangements to enable oversight of pupils 

numbers and the number of  vulnerable children attending, including 

schools liaising with Children’s Social Care if children are not 

attending, and if they are unable to make contact with them, so that 

this can be pursued by other services.  

 

Page 14



  

OFFICIAL 

11 

6.35 We have ensured free school meals are provided both to pupils who 

are continuing to attend, and for those who are not in school. We 

have cancelled the majority of school transport, but ensured that  

transport arrangements have remained in place for those who are 

continuing to attend, including where vulnerable children have been 

increasingly supported back into school.  

 

6.36 The Virtual School for cared for children has provided additional 

guidance and resources to carers and children to ensure they can 

continue to make progress educationally while they are not in 

school.We have also been coordinating work around the DfE offer to 

supply equipment and 4G to support remote education for Year 10 

and vulnerable pupils.  

 

6.37 We have received risk assessments from schools for children with 

Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) who are not in school. 

We have regular contact with the Parent Carer Forum and have 

provided learning resources tailored to different types of needs to 

support children, along with a helpline for parents with children with 

Autism and support via video conferencing for children with sensory 

impairments. Health partners have also looked at different ways of 

meeting children’s needs from home. Support and equipment has 

been provided for families where needed to enable them to support 

remote education. We know that many parents and children with an 

EHCP are finding it challenging and are struggling with the fact that 

routines and provision at school will have changed. We anticipate 

that this will continue and additional support will be needed as we re-

integrate back into school over the coming year. 

 

6.38 We are continuing to improve the quality of our EHCPs. As a result 

of the change to SEND (Special Educational Needs and/or 

Disabilities) legislation due to coronavirus, we are now required to 

evidence for each child with an EHCP what reasonable endeavours 

we have made ensure children receive the provision detailed in their 

plan during COVID-19. There are currently 2,600 children on plans, 

and evidence needs to be gained from Health, Education and Social 

Care, so this is a considerable exercise. A working group has 

established a clear process for completing these returns and work is 

currently underway on completing these for all our children.  

 

6.39 We have developed a minimum offer to support transition remotely 

for children and young people who are due to move schools.  

 

Page 15



 

OFFICIAL 

6.40 We effectively managed our primary offer date remotely in line with 

temporary legislation, with 98.1% of Cheshire East residents offered 

a preference school and 91.4% offered their first choice. The school 

admissions team received more than 4,200 applications for places. 

 

6.41 School building works have been significantly delayed due to 

coronavirus. We have put alternative arrangements in place, 

including temporary accomodation, to ensure we can still offer places 

to pupils in September, avoiding disruption to children and expensive 

out of borough placements.  

 

6.42 We have been very busy holding extensive discussions with all key 

stakeholders; teaching unions, school heads and the Cheshire East 

parent carer forum, on a programme of a phased wider opening of 

education settings following the announcement of the Prime Minister 

on 10 May. An Education Recovery group has been established to 

plan for the phased wider opening of schools. We agreed a Cheshire 

East position which we have communicated to all parents and 

schools. Plans included a two-week period from 1 June to allow staff 

to prepare classrooms and implement the significant changes that 

need to be made to ensure safe working practices with smaller 

numbers of children and young people. 

 

6.43 We reviewed this position in light of the information released on 

Friday 5 June that indicated that the R-value had increased 

marginally above 1 in the North West. A joint statement from the 

Cheshire and Merseyside Directors of Public Health on the phased 

re-opening of schools was issued. They considered the phased 

returning of schools carefully, reviewing the latest available evidence 

and good practice, and supported progressing plans for a phased 

return of Reception, Years 1 and 6 if it is deemed safe to do so. We 

therefore confirmed that our position would be to continue using the 

cautious but sensible approach outlined in our previous letter subject 

to risk assessments being in place. 

 

6.44 From 15 June, all eligible nursery-aged pupils will be able to attend 

on a limited and controlled basis where staffing capacity and space 

allows. From 22 June, all Reception and Year 1 pupils will be 

welcome back to Primary School, moving to all Year 6 on 29 June if 

the school has enough space to do so with social distancing in place.  

 

6.45 From 15 June, secondary schools will offer some face to face 

support for Year 10 and Year 12* pupils (*Year 11 for alternative 

provision) in line with the government guidance, with no more that 

Page 16



  

OFFICIAL 

13 

25% of these pupils attending at any one time.  We have asked that 

schools consider creating targeted provision for ‘bubbles’ of pupils 

who are vulnerable to underperformance or disengagement to help 

to support them in their education.  

 

6.46 Pupils of special schools will be encouraged to return to school 

based on a review of their individual risk assessment.  Priority will be 

given to increasing places to children of key workers and children 

who have a social worker. Special schools will consider a phased 

approach to support a wider opening to children and young people, 

which enables small groups to adjust to changes where this is 

appropriate, from 15 June.  Special schools will steadily increase 

pupil numbers, prioritising key transition groups.  

 

6.47 For pupils not in school, we asked schools to ensure that children 

who are due to transition between schools in September are 

supported while they remain at home.  

 

6.48  We also asked schools to review their home learning arrangements 

and support for wellbeing of children and young people, ensuring 

they have regular contact with all children not invited back into 

school to encourage and support learning and wellbeing. 

 

6.49 Our priority is to make sure that any way forward is safe for everyone 

within our schools and we have delivered a supply of PPE to all 

schools and colleges prior to them opening. We have developed a 

risk assessment framework and checklist for schools to complete to 

ensure safe arrangements are in place, and we are releasing further 

advice and guidance around HR and safeguarding. 

 

6.50 We are currently planning for the reopening of school kitchens, and 

establishing increased school transport for the phased reopening.  

 

6.51 The Secretary of State for Education has announced that all pupils 

will return to school from September. We are awaiting guidance from 

the DfE on their plans to enable this to happen in a safe way. 

 

6.52 We are having regular calls with the ADCS, Practice Leaders Group, 

DfE and Chief Social Worker to share good practice and any issues 

across LA areas and based on this we are satisfied that the 

measures we have put in place are the right ones to ensure children 

are protected. A number of our inititatives have been recognised as 

good practice, including out position on reopening schools and our 

letter to early years settings.  

Page 17



 

OFFICIAL 

 

Mental Health and Wellbeing 

 

6.53 We are seeing an impact of COVID-19, and families being confined 

together for long periods of time during lockdown, on the mental 

health of children, young people and parents/ carers. COVID-19 has 

also brought additional stressors, such as employment uncertainty, 

lack of emotional and parenting support from family and friends 

through restricted contact, change in working conditions and 

expectations, and additional financial pressures from having children 

at home. This is taking a toll on some of our families. An all age 

mental health telephone number was put in place at the onset of the 

COVID-19 pandemic as a single point of contact. CAMHS have 

worked closely with Children’s Services and the wider partnership to 

raise awareness of the help available and how to get in touch. Over 

the last few weeks there has been an initial decrease in the number 

of referrals to CAMHS. This is expected to raise in future months.  

 

6.54 A range of resources have been shared with staff to support them to 

work with families who are experiencing mental health difficulties. 

We continue to seek out additional training for our workforce to 

ensure that they are equpped to deal with the increased demand 

from children and parents whose Mental Health has deteriorated 

during lockdown. 

 

6.56 Following the Government’s announcement on 7 June about 

additional mental health support for pupils and teachers, the DfE has 

published a new training module to support teachers in giving 

lessons on the government’s new Relationships, Sex and Health 

Education (RSHE) curriculum, which will make mental health and 

wellbeing a compulsory part of pupils’ education in primary and 

secondary school. 

 

6.57 Developed with clinical experts, the training module will help subject 

leads and teachers deliver the new curriculum effectively when it 

becomes compulsory from September, as well as improving their 

confidence in talking and teaching about mental wellbeing in class, 

especially as many measures to stop the spread of coronavirus 

remain in place and many people continue to experience restrictions 

in their daily lives. 

 

6.58 New online resources designed by health and education experts will 

also be provided to schools and colleges to boost mental health 

support for staff and pupils, encouraging them to talk more 

Page 18



  

OFFICIAL 

15 

confidently about the anxieties and concerns they feel as a result of 

the coronavirus pandemic. Videos, webinars and teaching materials, 

produced in partnership with charities, will be made available to 

schools and colleges, helping to foster conversations about mental 

health and reassure many young people who are worried about the 

impact of the virus on their lives. 

 

6.59 As more pupils return to the classroom as part of the Government’s 

phased approach to the wider opening of schools, the Department 

for Education has announced grants worth more than £750,000 for 

the Diana Award, the Anti-Bullying Alliance and the Anne Frank Trust 

- to help hundreds of schools and colleges build relationships 

between pupils, boost their resilience, and continue to tackle bullying 

both in person and online. 

 

Impact and Challenges Ahead 

 

6.60 We have many challenges ahead. COVID-19 is and will continue to 

have a significant impact on our children, young people and families. 

The strain of COVID-19 and lockdown has increased pressures for 

families, with some facing redundancy. The mental health and 

wellbeing of children, young people and families has been affected. 

Children and young people have missed out on education. Lockdown 

has reduced the visibility of children, allowing harm to remain hidden. 

The likely economic recession that will follow as a result of COVID-

19 will increase the number of children living in poverty and will 

exacerbate the current inequalities. The legacy of this will be an 

increased demand for services over the next year but also in the 

longer term, at increased cost to the Council and the partnership. 

 

7. Implications of the Recommendations 

 

7.1. Legal Implications 

 

7.1.1 New legislation has been enacted and guidance has been released 

in relation to coronavirus.  

 

7.1.2 Some legislation, for example the Adoption and Children 

(Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020, allows us to relax 

some of our statutory requirements in order to support and manage 

the provision of services to children and families during this time. The 

Children and Families Leadership Team have agreed that we will 

provide services to the higher original statutory requirements and will 

Page 19



 

OFFICIAL 

only apply the relaxations where it is in children’s best interests to do 

so, with a clearly recorded rationale.  

 

7.1.3 Other new legislation, such as the changes to SEND legislation, has 

brought new requirements for services, such as the requirement to 

outline what reasonable adjustments have been made during this 

time to provide the provision in children’s Education Health and Care 

Plans (EHCPs). Work is currently underway to ensure we are 

compliant with these requirements.  

 

7.1.4  We have liaised with our Legal Services colleagues throughout the 

last few months, to assist with and support our understanding and 

implementation of all legislation and guidance that affects our 

services to children and families. We will continue to do so, as 

appropriate, as we move into the recovery phase. 

 

7.2. Financial Implications 

 

7.2.1 Like many councils, Cheshire East continues to face increased costs 

and demand pressures at the same time as seeing a significant drop 

in income. We estimate that the financial implications of COVID-19 

for the whole Council are significant, at around £60m. To date, the 

Council has received £19.7m of un-ring-fenced grant from central 

government and additional grants for specific responsibilities. 

 

7.2.2 As some children and young people will be staying in placements 

longer than they would otherwise, this will be a continued upward 

pressure on cared for children expenditure. We have seen an 

increase in the use of external foster care placements. It is likely that 

there will be increased demand for placements, and there is a risk 

that providers will uplift placement costs in response. Foster carer 

allowances have been temporarily increased to support the 

additional costs of having children at home as a result of 

coronavirus, and we have increased the support available to foster 

carers through regular phone contact, which carers have 

appreciated. As time progresses, it is likely that the increase in costs 

as a result of COVID-19 will rise further. 

 

7.2.3 We expect to see a rise in referrals to Prevention and Children’s 

Social Care once more children return to schools and settings. This 

could result in a significant increase in demand to services over the 

coming year and in the longer term.   

 

 

Page 20



  

OFFICIAL 

17 

7.3. Equality Implications 

 

7.3.1 Care leavers are especially vulnerable and may be disproportionately 

disadvantaged in terms of housing and employment options as a 

result of COVID-19. They are also more likely to be living alone so 

have been at risk of being socially isolated during lockdown.   

 

7.3.2 We have seen an increase in mental health issues, particularly for 

parents, as a result of the stress of lockdown. Many issues may still be 

remaining hidden and may only come to light as lockdown continues 

to lift.  

 

7.3.3 Some people we work with are at higher risk from COVID-19, for 

example pregnant women, people from black, Asian and minority 

ethnic backgrounds, and those with underlying health conditions such 

as some of our children with special educational needs and 

disabilities. Some of our children are being shielded, and could 

potentially be at risk of becoming socially isolated as their peers 

increasingly return back to school. 

 

7.3.4 Some children with additional needs, for example those with autism, 

could find the change in routine at school and at home particularly 

challenging and may need additional support to help them through the 

changes.  

 

7.4.  Human Resources Implications 

 

7.4.1 There have been HR implications to staff working in different ways. HR 

and Public Health have been supportive of officers in ensuring that 

robust risk assessments are in place and available to staff in 

undertaking their duties, for example in carrying out face to face visits 

to families. 

 

7.4.2 We quickly moved to allow all staff who could work from home to do 

so, and services quickly adapted so that they could continue to 

operate effectively under the new circumstances. Changing to an 

organisation that predominantly works remotely has been a huge 

challenge but is working well and there have been many success 

stories. Staff have shown enormous flexibility and resilience. They 

have done a great job. Families have been very positive about our 

new offer and virtual contact with them, and there will some ways of 

working we will continue with in the long term.  

 

Page 21



 

OFFICIAL 

7.4.5  There has been regular communication with staff, including regular 

Children and Families staff newsletters sharing good practice and the 

latest guidance, and good co-operation with the Trade Unions. We 

have had a strong emphasis on recognising and celebrating the hard 

work and achievements of our teams.  

 

7.4.6 Fortunately, throughout this time our teams have remained well staffed 

and we have not seen the impact of COVID-19 on staffing levels.  

 

7.5. Risk Management Implications 

 

7.5.1 We have developed specific COVID-19 risk registers for Children’s 

Services. We have also looked at Worse Case Scenarios as part of 

the whole Council response. We are keeping Business Continuity 

Plans under review. The Children and Families Leadership team are 

continuing to meet on a regular basis to share information and 

ensure there is a joint approach to our response and risks are 

anticipated and mitigated.  

 

7.6. Rural Communities Implications 

 

7.6.1 There are no direct rural communities’ implications of this report. 

 

7.7. Implications for Children & Young People/Cared for Children  

 

7.7.1 The contents of this report have outlined the implications for our 

children and young people.  

 

7.8. Public Health Implications 

 

7.8.1 COVID-19 is a global pandemic and public health emergency. Public 

Health advice has been sought to ensure Children’s Services are 

complying with Public Health guidelines and are providing safe 

services for families and our staff.  

 

7.9. Climate Change Implications 

 

7.9.1 The increase in people working from home, and reduced travel, has 

had a positive impact on climate change. The current government 

guidance is to avoid public transport, so we are encouraging families 

to walk or cycle to school where possible.  

 

 

 

Page 22



  

OFFICIAL 

19 

8. Ward Members Affected 

8.1 All members. 

 

9.  Consultation & Engagement 

9.1. Our Youth Council has continued to meet (virtually), and we continue 

to consult with the Parent Carer Forum and other groups. Feedback 

from families and partners on our support during COVID-19 has 

overall been very positive. Frontline staff have been involved in 

planning for recovery.  

 

10.   Access to Information 

10.1. None. 

 

11.   Contact Information 

11.1.  Any questions relating to this report should be directed to the 

following officer: 

 

Name: Mark Palethorpe 

Job Title: Executive Director of People 

Email: Mark.Palethorpe@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Page 23

mailto:Mark.Palethorpe@cheshireeast.gov.uk
mailto:Mark.Palethorpe@cheshireeast.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



FORWARD PLAN FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 30TH SEPTEMBER 2020

This Plan sets out the key decisions which the Executive expects to take over the period 
indicated above. The Plan is rolled forward every month. A key decision is defined in the 
Council’s Constitution as:

“an executive decision which is likely –
 
(a) to result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of 

savings which are, significant having regard to the local authority’s budget for 
the service or function to which the decision relates; or

 
(b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an 

area comprising one or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of the 
local authority.

 
For the purpose of the above, savings or expenditure are “significant” if they are 
equal to or greater than £1M.”

Reports relevant to key decisions, and any listed background documents, may be viewed 
at any of the Council’s Offices/Information Centres 5 days before the decision is to be 
made. Copies of, or extracts from, these documents may be obtained on the payment of a 
reasonable fee from the following address:

Democratic Services Team
Cheshire East Council
c/o Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach Cheshire CW11 1HZ
Telephone:  01270 686472

However, it is not possible to make available for viewing or to supply copies of reports or 
documents the publication of which is restricted due to confidentiality of the information 
contained.

A record of each key decision is published within 6 days of it having been made. This is 
open for public inspection on the Council's Website, at Council Information Centres and at 
Council Offices.

This Forward Plan also provides notice that the Cabinet, or a Portfolio Holder, may decide 
to take a decision in private, that is, with the public and press excluded from the meeting. 
In accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access 
to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, 28 clear days’ notice must be given of any 
decision to be taken in private by the Cabinet or a Portfolio Holder, with provision for the 
public to make representations as to why the decision should be taken in public.  In such 
cases, Members of the Council and the public may make representations in writing to the 
Democratic Services Team Manager using the contact details below. A further notice of 
intention to hold the meeting in private must then be published 5 clear days before the 

Page 25 Agenda Item 8



meeting, setting out any representations received about why the meeting should be held in 
public, together with a response from the Leader and the Cabinet.

The list of decisions in this Forward Plan indicates whether a decision is to be taken in 
private, with the reason category for the decision being taken in private being drawn from 
the list overleaf: 

1. Information relating to an individual
2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual
3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including to authority holding that information)
4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office 
holders under the authority

5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal and professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings

6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes (a) to give under any 
enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a 
person; or (b) to make an order or direction under any enactment

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation of prosecution of crime

If you would like to make representations about any decision to be conducted in private at 
a meeting, please email:

Paul Mountford, Executive Democratic Services Officer 
paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Such representations must be received at least 10 clear working days before the date of 
the Cabinet or Portfolio Holder meeting concerned.

Where it has not been possible to meet the 28 clear day rule for publication of notice of a 
key decision or intention to meet in private, the relevant notices will be published as soon 
as possible in accordance with the requirements of the Constitution.

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made. Any 
decision made in this way will be published in the same way.

Page 26

mailto:paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk


Forward Plan

Key Decision 
and 

Private 
Non-Key 
Decision

Decisions to be Taken Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 18/19-60 
The Minerals 
and Waste 
Development 
Plan

To seek approval to 
consult on the first draft of 
the Minerals and Waste 
Development Plan. 

Portfolio Holder for 
Planning

May 2020 David Malcolm N/A

CE 19/20-42 
Congleton 
Leisure Centre 
Redevelopment 
Project

To seek authority to enter 
into the construction 
contract with Rock 
Merchanting (T/A Pulse 
Fitness) for the 
redevelopment of 
Congleton Leisure Centre.

Portfolio Holder for 
Communities

May 2020 Paul Bayley Fully exempt 
- para 3

CE 19/20-47 
Loan to 
Cheshire and 
Warrington 
Local Enterprise 
Partnership

To approve a loan to 
Cheshire and Warrington 
Local Enterprise 
Partnership to stimulate 
development on the 
Enterprise Zones; officers 
be authorised to take all 
necessary actions to 
progress the loan 
agreement and establish 
governance processes.

Cabinet 9 Jun 2020 Paul Goodwin N/A

P
age 27



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 19/20-55 
Houses in 
Multiple 
Occupation 
Supplementary 
Planning 
Document

To seek approval to 
consult on the first draft 
supplementary planning 
document for houses in 
multiple occupation.

Portfolio Holder for 
Planning

June 2020 Jeremy Owens

CE 19/20-36 
Middlewich 
Eastern Bypass 
- CPO Powers 
to Acquire 
Revised Land 
for the Scheme

To authorise the use of 
compulsory purchase 
powers to acquire the land 
and rights required for the 
construction of the 
scheme, reflecting the 
revised land requirement 
that has now been 
established.

Cabinet 7 Jul 2020 Chris Hindle N/A

CE 19/20-43 
Appropriation of 
Land for 
Planning 
Purposes at the 
Garden Village, 
Handforth

To authorise the 
appropriation of Council-
owned land for planning 
purposes at the Garden 
Village, Handforth.

Cabinet 7 Jul 2020 Geoffrey Dyson Part exempt - 
paras 3 and 
5

CE 19/20-54 
Level Access 
Showers 
Framework

To approve the 
procurement and 
establishment of a 
framework to commission 
level access shower works 
on behalf of residents with 
disabilities.

Cabinet 7 Jul 2020 Karen Whitehead N/A

P
age 28



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 19/20-56 
Local Growth 
Fund Cycleway 
Schemes

To seek approval for the procurement of works to construct new cycleways to 
serve North West Crewe and Wilmslow, utilising the Local Growth Funding 
allocation from C&WLEP; and to seek authority to prepare the Compulsory 
Purchase Order for the scheme.

Cabinet 7 Jul 2020 Richard Hibbert N/A

CE 19/20-21 
Site Allocations 
and 
Development 
Policies 
Document

To decide the next steps in 
progressing the Site 
Allocations and 
Development Policies 
Document to public 
examination.

Cabinet 8 Sep 2020 Jeremy Owens N/A

CE 19/20-31 
Proposed 
Expansion of 
Wilmslow High 
School

Subject to the School 
Organisation Sub-
Committee approving the 
proposed expansion of 
Wilmslow High School at 
a meeting to be held on 
6th April 2020, Cabinet 
will be asked to authorise 
the Executive Director 
People to enter into a 
construction contract to 
facilitate the provision of 
additional places at 
Wilmslow High School. 

Cabinet 8 Sep 2020 Val Simons N/A

P
age 29



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 19/20-46 
Support for 
Syrian 
Vulnerable 
Person 
Resettlement 
Programme and 
Unaccompanied 
Asylum-Seeking 
Children and 
Asylum Seekers 
Dispersal 
Programme

To update Cabinet on the 
four programmes under 
support, which are:
 Syrian Vulnerable 

Person Re-
settlement

 Unaccompanied 
Asylum-seeking 
Children

 Asylum-seeker 
Dispersal

 Community 
Sponsorship 
Resettlement

and to seek approval to 
extend the current 
programmes following a 
request from Government 
for further commitment 
from local authorities.

To delegate authority to 
the Executive Director 
People in consultation with 
the Executive Director 
Place to determine the 
appropriate allocation.

Cabinet 8 Sep 2020 Jill Stenton N/A

P
age 30



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 19/20-51 
New Homes 
Bonus 
Community 
Fund - Review 
of Round 1 and 
Future Options

To consider a review of 
round 1 of the New Homes 
Bonus Community Fund 
and to consider the options 
for the future of the Fund.

Cabinet 8 Sep 2020 Jill Stenton N/A

CE 19/20-52 
Regional 
Adoption 
Agency 
Integrated 
Services 
Agreement

To approve that the 
Council enter into an 
integrated service 
agreement and associated 
support agreement with its 
partners.

Cabinet 8 Sep 2020 N/A

CE 19/20-53 - 
Future High 
Streets Fund 
Grant Support 
for Crewe Town 
Centre 
Regeneration

To determine whether to 
accept a government grant 
to support a range of 
measures to support the 
regeneration of Crewe 
town centre; to approve a 
supplementary capital 
estimate to facilitate 
expenditure utilising this 
grant; and to authorise 
officers to take all 
necessary actions to 
implement the proposal.

Cabinet 10 Nov 2020 Jez Goodman N/A

P
age 31



Key Decision Decisions to be 
Taken

Decision Maker Expected 
Date of 

Decision

Proposed 
Consultation

How to make 
representation 
to the decision 

made

Private/
Confidential 

and 
paragraph 

number
CE 19/20-49 
Council Tax 
Base 2021-22

For Cabinet to consider 
the Council Tax Base for 
Cheshire East and identify 
any changes to the 
calculation of the tax base 
for 2021-22 with a view to 
recommending the amount 
calculated to Council.

Council 16 Dec 2020 Paul Manning N/A

CE 19/20-50 
Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy 2021-
25

To approve the Medium 
Term Financial Strategy 
2021-25 incorporating the 
Council’s priorities, budget, 
policy proposals and 
capital programme. The 
report will include the 
capital, treasury 
management, investment 
and reserves strategies.

Council 17 Feb 2021 N/A P
age 32



OFFICIAL

Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting: 22 June 2020

Report Title: Work Programme

Senior Officer: Jane Burns, Executive Director of Corporate Services

1. Report Summary

1.1. To review items in the work programme listed in the schedule attached, 
together with any other items suggested by committee members.

2. Recommendation

2.1. To approve the work programme, subject to the agreement to add new 
items or delete items that no longer require any scrutiny activity.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1. It is good practice to regularly review the work programme and update it as 
required.

4. Background

4.1. The committee has responsibility for updating and approving its own work 
programme. Scrutiny liaison meetings – held between the Chairman and 
Vice-Chairman of the committee, alongside the portfolio holders and key 
senior officers – ensure that there is continued awareness and discussion 
of upcoming policies, strategies and decisions within the committee’s remit 
area.

5. Determining Which Items Should be Added to the Work Programme

5.1. When selecting potential topics, members should have regard to the 
Council’s three year plan and to the criteria listed below, which should be 
considered to determine whether scrutiny activity is appropriate.

Page 33 Agenda Item 9



OFFICIAL

5.2. The following questions should be considered by the committee when 
determining whether to add new work programme items, or delete existing 
items: 

 Does the issue fall within a corporate priority?

 Is the issue of key interest to the public?

 Does the matter relate to a poor or declining performing service for 
which there is no obvious explanation?

 Is there a pattern of budgetary overspends or underspends?

 Is it a matter raised by external audit management letters and or 
audit reports?

 Is there a high level of dissatisfaction with the service?

5.3. The committee should not add any items to its work programme (and 
should delete any existing items) that fall under any one of the following:

 The topic is already being addressed elsewhere by another body 
(i.e. this committee would be duplicating work)

 The matter is sub-judice

 Scrutiny would not add value to the matter

 The committee is unlikely to be able to conclude an investigation 
within a specified or required timescale

6. Implications of the Recommendations

6.1. There are no implications to legal or financial matters, equality, human 
resources, risk management, or for rural communities, children and young 
people or public health.

7. Ward Members Affected

7.1. All.

8. Access to Information

8.1. The background papers can be inspected by contacting the report author.

9. Contact Information

9.1. Any questions relating to this report should be directed to the following 
officer:

Page 34



OFFICIAL

Name: Helen Davies

Job Title: Scrutiny Officer

Email: helen.davies@cheshireeast.gov.uk 

Page 35

mailto:helen.davies@cheshireeast.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Work Programme Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee Updated 08/06/20

OFFICIAL

Date: 22.6.20
Time: 1.30pm
Venue: Virtual 
Microsoft Teams 
Meeting

Date: August 
2020 TBA
Time: 1.30pm
Venue: Microsoft 
Teams Meeting 
TBA

Date: 28.9.20
Time: 1.30pm
Venue: 
Committee Suite, 
Westfields

Date: 23.11.20
Time: 1.30pm
Venue: 
Committee Suite, 
Westfields

Date: 25.1.21
Time: 1.30pm
Venue: 
Committee Suite, 
Westfields

Date: 22.3.21
Time: 1.30pm
Venue: 
Committee Suite, 
Westfields

The Committee considers a young persons story at the start of every meeting

Item Purpose Lead Officer Portfolios Suggested 
by

Scrutiny role Corporate 
priorities

Date

Responding to Covid-
19

To receive an update to cover the 
response by Cheshire East to the global 
pandemic specifically: education, child 
protection, children missing from 
home and children not accessing full 
time education plus as update on 
young people’s mental health needs 
and the current offer.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Acting 
Executive 
Director of 
People

Performance 
Monitoring

People live 
well and for 
longer. 

A responsible, 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

22nd June 
2020

Local Authority 
Designated Officer 
(LADO) Annual 
Report

To consider the annual report of the 
LADO.

LADO Children and 
Families

Acting 
Executive 
Director of 
People

Performance 
monitoring

A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation

People live 
well and for 
longer

Chairman 
agreed for 
the 
committee to 
receive 
electronically 
(June 2020)

P
age 37



Work Programme Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee Updated 08/06/20

OFFICIAL

Item Purpose Lead Officer Portfolios Suggested 
by

Scrutiny role Corporate 
priorities

Date

Annual Education 
Report

To give consideration to the annual 
education report

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Pre decision 
scrutiny

People live 
well and for 
longer

Chairman 
agreed for 
the 
committee to 
receive 
electronically 
(June 2020)

Multi themed update To receive an update on Adoption 
Counts, Covid-19 impacts on Education 
and schools, and the February Spotlight 
Review Final Report.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

TBA August 
2020 

Quarter One: 
Children and Families 
Quarterly 
Performance 
Scorecard

To give consideration to the Children & 
Families quarterly performance 
scorecard  

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

TBA August 
2020 (if data 
is not 
available for 
Aug then 28th 
Sept

SEND

reforms Task and 
Finish: Cabinet 
comments

To review the comments back to the 
committee from Cabinet in respect of 
the SEND reforms Task and Finish 
group

SEND To receive a progress update following 
agreement of the Written Statement 
Of Action and the comments by Ofsted 
and Care Quality Commission (CQC) 
following the scheduled re-visit.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

28th 
September 
2020

P
age 38



Work Programme Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee Updated 08/06/20

OFFICIAL

Item Purpose Lead Officer Portfolios Suggested 
by

Scrutiny role Corporate 
priorities

Date

Corporate Parenting 
Annual Report 
2020/21

To review the Corporate Parenting 
Annual Report for 2020/21.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

Chairman 
agreed for 
the 
committee to 
receive 
electronically 
(September 
2020)

Annual Adoption 
Report

To give consideration to the Annual 
Adoption Report 2020/21.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

Chairman 
agreed for 
the 
committee to 
receive 
electronically 
(September 
2020)

Domestic Abuse 
Commission

To receive an update on the impact of 
the new provision

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Pre-decision 
scrutiny

People live 
well and for 
longer

23rd 
November 
2020

Children & Families 
Budget Proposals

To give consideration to the budget 
proposals that fall within the remit of 
the Committee. 

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

23rd 
November 
2020

Early Help Strategy To update the committee on the 
strategy post Cabinet decision.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Portfolio 
Holder

Pre decision 
scrutiny

People live 
well and for 
longer

23rd 
November 
2020

P
age 39



Work Programme Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee Updated 08/06/20

OFFICIAL

Item Purpose Lead Officer Portfolios Suggested 
by

Scrutiny role Corporate 
priorities

Date

High Needs Funding To update the committee on progress 
towards a new model for how high 
needs funding to schools is allocated.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Pre decision 
scrutiny

A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation

23rd 
November 
2020

Items for the Work Programme to be rescheduled.

Children’s Home 
Commission 

To review the changes in commission 
Planning officer to attend

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Pre decision 
scrutiny

A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

People live 
well and for 
longer

23rd March 
2020 To be 
rescheduled

Lifelong Learning Overview of the impact of lifelong 
learning.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Liaison 
meeting

Performance 
monitoring

People live 
well and for 
longer

23rd April 
2020 To be 
rescheduled

Alternative Delivery 
Venues

To scrutinise alternative delivery 
venues for Early Start Services

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Executive 
Director of 
People

Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation

23rd April 
2020 To be 
rescheduled

Together in 
Communities: 
Workshop Update

To receive an overview of the work 
carried out during the Together in 
Communities Workshop Update

Director of Early 
Help and 
Prevention

Children and 
Families

Director of 
Early Help 
and 
Prevention

Overview People have
the life skills
and education
they need in
order to thrive

22nd June 
2020

P
age 40



Work Programme Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee Updated 08/06/20

OFFICIAL

Item Purpose Lead Officer Portfolios Suggested 
by

Scrutiny role Corporate 
priorities

Date

Annual Report of 
Member Frontline 
Visits

To review the Member Frontline Visits 
Annual Report for 2020/21.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

28th 
September 
2020

Cheshire East 
Safeguarding 
Children’s 
Partnership Annual 
Report

To give consideration to the Cheshire 
East Safeguarding Children’s 
Partnership (CESCP) Annual Report 
2020/21.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny People have
the life skills
and education
they need in
order to thrive

23rd 
November 
2020

Local Authority 
Designated Officer 
(LADO) Annual 
Report

To give consideration to the Local 
Authority Designated Officer (LADO) 
Annual Report.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny People have
the life skills
and education
they need in
order to 
thrive.

23rd 
November 
2020

Integrated Front 
Door Update

To receive an update on progress 
relating to the Integrated Front Door.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

23rd 
November 
2020

Quarter Two: 
Children and Families 
Quarterly 
Performance 
Scorecard

To give consideration to the Children & 
Families quarterly performance 
scorecard  

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

23rd 
November 
2020

SEND: Written 
Statement of Action 
post Ofsted visit 

To scrutinise progress over the past 
year against the SEND: Written 
Statement of Action.

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 

23rd 
November 
2020

P
age 41



Work Programme Children and Families Overview and Scrutiny Committee Updated 08/06/20

OFFICIAL

Item Purpose Lead Officer Portfolios Suggested 
by

Scrutiny role Corporate 
priorities

Date

review or 12 month 
update

organisation.

Annual Education 
Report

To give consideration to the Annual 
Education Report

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

22nd March 
2021

Quarter Three: 
Children and Families 
Quarterly 
Performance 
Scorecard

To give consideration to the Children & 
Families quarterly performance 
scorecard  

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

22nd March 
2021

Quarter Four: 
Children and Families 
Quarterly 
Performance 
Scorecard

To give consideration to the Children & 
Families quarterly performance 
scorecard  

Executive 
Director of 
People

Children and 
Families

Committee Scrutiny A responsible 
effective and 
efficient 
organisation.

TBA- June 
2021

P
age 42


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous meeting
	7 Covid Update - Children's Services
	8 Forward Plan
	9 Work Programme
	Work Programme - Children and Families OSC


